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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Kingsburg, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Kingsburg, California,
(ihe City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's
management. Our responsibitity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and the significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all materia! respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
ihe aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have aiso issued our report dated December 5,
2012 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Audifing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States i America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, aithough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

%77 Scolt Avenue, Clovis, California 93612
Telephone (559) 299-9540 # Fax (559) 299-2344 # Fomail ppe@ppcpas.com * WwI.ppepas.com
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary
comparison information on pages 4849 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, aithough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management aboui the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’'s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion ar provide any assurance on the information
because the limited precedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s financial statements. The combining and individual nenmajor fund financial statemenis
and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accouniing and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our apinion,
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditure of federal
awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Pra Pugn. £ Loy

Clovis, California
December 5, 2012
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments

Accounts and interest receivable, net

Deferred charges

Land held for low and moderate housing projects
Internal balances

Capital assets, net of allowance for depreciation

Total assets
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payabie
Deposits
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Capital improvement projects

Circulation improvements

Debt service reserve

Community services activities

Public safety programs
Unrestricted/{deficit)

Total net assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 2,060839 3 (560,868) $ 2,408,771
1,250,091 - 1,250,081
1,749,258 494,139 2,243,397
193,733 - 193,733
574,389 - 574,389
3,562,041 (3,562,041) -
13,276,206 8,641,348 21,817,554
23,675,357 4,912 578 28,487 935
137,476 349,331 486,806
200,351 32,189 232,540

2,231 6,500 8,731
389,776 160,228 550,002
5,771,180 2,700,556 8,471,736
6,501,014 3,248,802 9,749,815
7,581,429 5,948 9bH9 13,530,388
1,835,211 - 1,835,211
1,560,099 - 1,550,099
5,846,194 - 5,846,194
10,931 - 10,931
574,389 - 574,389
{363,909) {4,285,183) (4,648,092)

$ 17,074344 $ 1663778 $ 18,738,120

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUNCTIONS/FROGRAMS:
Primary Gevernment

Governmental acfivitles:
General government
Parks and community services
Publlc safety
Public works
Planning and community development

Debi Service:
Interest on fiscal charges

Totai governmental acfivities
Business-type activilies:
Water
Disposal
Ambulance
Bullding Fee

Tola! business-type aclivities

Total

CITY OF KINGSBURG

STATEMENT

OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Nei (Expense) Revenue and
Changes In Net Assets

Charges Far Operaling Capital Govemmental Business-Tvpe
Expenses Senvices Granls Grants Acthvities Aclivities Total
5 1,022861 § 1,707 § - % - § (1.021,154) § - % {1,021,154)
344,004 152,938 4572 23,084 (1683,410) - (163,410)
1,635,258 95,102 170,402 - {1,369,755) - {1,369,755)
1,153,597 14,506 927,123 - {211,968) - {211,868)
334,737 22,782 55,508 1,311,741 855,384 - 855,584
550,081 - - - (550,981) - §550,981
5,041,439 287,035 1,157,695 1,134,825 (2,461,884) - (2,461,884)
1,748,110 1,637,584 - - - (140,517} (110,517}
1,647,144 1,583,815 - - - (53,229) {53,220}
1,568,302 780,259 - - - {788,044) {788,044)
50,680 79,181 - - - 28,511 28,511
5,014,236 4,000,957 - - - (923,279) (923,279)
$ 10055675 $ 4377892 §_ 1157695 § 1,134,825 {2,461,884) (223,279) (3,385,163)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Propery taxes 1,105,258 - 1,106,258
Sales and use laxes 0B6,348 - 986,848
Franchise taxes 324,743 - 324,743
Special assessments 268,1¢8 - 269,198
Business licenses and transient cccupancy laxes 318,203 - 318,203
Moior vehicle in-lisu B39,275 - 839,275
invesiment earnings 384,386 787 385,183
Miscellaneous 143,316 - 143,316
Extraordinary Hem-RDA dissolution (224,517} - (224,517}
Transfers (688,128) 702,034 13,808
Total general revenues and transfers 3,456,594 702,821 4,162,415
Changes In net assels 987,710 (220,458) 777,252
Net assels - beginning 16,124,458 1,864,234 18,008,692
Prior period adjustments (47,824) - {47.824)
Net assets - ending $ 17,074,344 § 1660776 5 18738120

The notes ko the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
5
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ASSETS

Cash and Invesiments

Accounls and interest recelvable

Land held for low and moderate housing projects
Due from other funds

Advances io other funds

Tetal assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts paysbie and accrued expanse
Deposils
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balantes:

Restricted:
Capltal improvement projecis
Circulation improvements
Debt service reserve
Community services activitlas
Public safety programs

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total iiabilities and fund balances

The notes to the basic financizl statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF KINGSBURG
BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Capital Projects

Debl Service Funds Fund
Kingsburg
Public Kingsburg Othar Total
Finance Assessment Redevelopment Governmenial Governmenlai
General Authority District xebi Service Streel Projects Funds Funds

3 033,055 § 913,832 % 310,088 § - 8 940,507y § 3003252 § 4,218,730
305,141 320,000 5849 - 856,311 181,856 1,748,257

- - - - - 574,369 574,389

- - 27,198 : - - 260,000 287,189

- 4,673,000 - - - - 4,673,000

3 1,238186 § B5O0EE32  § 343246 § - 8 15804 $_ 3999487 § 11503575
§ 96,488 3 20800 & - B - % 8621 % 11757 % 137,476
2,231 - - - - - 2,231

- 40,038 105,120 150,000 - 295,158

52,667 - - - 907,331 - 959,988

- - 1,103,000 - - - 1,103,000

151,398 60,638 1,208,120 - 1,065,952 11,757 2,497,863

_ - - - - 1,835,211 1,835,211

- - - - - 1,580,089 1,580,009

- 5,846,194 - - - - 5,846,194

- - - - - 10,931 10,831

- - - - - 574,289 574,389
1,086,800 - (864,874} - {1,050,148) (22,880 (851,112)
1,086,800 _ 5,846,194 [864,874) - (1,050,148) 3,887,740 9,005,712

$ 1708185 § 5008832 % 343,246 § - 5 15804 § 3,999497 §_ 11503575
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CITY OF KiNGSBURG
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012 '

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 9005712

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used In governmentai activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, they are not reported in the
governmental funds. 13,276,206

Expenditures relating to issuance of debt were recognized in the 193,735
governmental funds, but are capitalized and amortized over the
life of the debt in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the
governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Revenue bonds {2,800,000)
Bonds payable (2,920,000)
Compensated absences (466,179)
Unamortized bond discount 25,223 (6,160,856)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 959,998

interest on long-term debt is reported as an expenditure of the
Governmental Funds when paid because it requires the use of
current financial resources. However, accrued interest mus{ be
recorded when incurred. {200,351)

Total net assets - governmental activities $ 17,074,344

The notes to the basic financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovarnmenial
Charges for services
Fines and penalties
Development fees
interest
Other revenue

Tolal revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Currant;
General government
Parks and community senvices
Public safety
Public works
Planning and community davelopment
Tax pass-through

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Princlpal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver
{under) sxpendliures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
RDA dissolution

Tolal exiraordinary ltem
Changes in fund baiance
Fund balances, July 1, 2011
Prior period adjustments

Fund balances, June 30, 2012

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integra

CITY OF KINGSBURG

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Capital Projecls

Dabt Service Funds Fund
Kingsburg Kingsburg Other Total
Public Finance Assessment  Redevelopment Governmental Govermmentat
General Authority Districts Debt Senvice Streel Projects Funds Funds

$ 2139738 § - 8 150,289 § B52,686 & - % 63,858 & 2,852 582
840,882 - - - - - B40,982
123,802 - - - 82,706 1,033,802 1,250,400
254,067 - - - - - 254 067
31,262 - - - - - 31,262

- B - - - 134,788 134,788

1,048 377,614 286 - a0 5220 384,398
137,300 - - - - 7,819 445,218
3,528,289 377,814 190,585 552,586 __ 82,736 1,251,668 5,993,688
545,139 - - - - 1,903 547,042
289,334 - - - - 70,256 338,580
1,531,286 - - - - - 1,531,298
442,804 - - - - 451,668 904,472
166,626 - - - - 24,411 191,037

- - - 153,500 - - 153,500

2,376 - - - 1,108,371 441 863 1,552,710

- £20,000 - 95,272 - - 715,272

- 383,710 125,402 23967 - - 543,078

2,857 575 1,013,710 125,402 272,739 1,108,371 1,000,201 6,477,898
570,714 (635,896) 65,183 278,847 (1,015,635} 251,487 (484,300)
389,880 - - - 339,737 595,458 1,325,075
(782,148) - - 272,748) - (958,3085) {2,013,201)
{352,268) - - {272,748) 339,737 (362,B47) (688B,128)
- - - 319,766 - (1‘058,433 {738,672}
- - - 318,766 - (1,058 438) (738,612}

178,448 {635,806) 55,183 326,865 (675,898) (1,169,798} (1911,088)
633,792 £,482,000 (930,057) {326,885) 11,646 4,566,158 10,438,765
274,662 - - - (3B5,896) 591,379 480,045
§ 4086800 % 5,846,184 $§  {864.874) § . $ _ {1,060,14B) $ 3,987,740 $ 9,005,712

10
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CITY OF KNGSBURG
REGONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $  (1,811,098)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Governmenta! funds report capital outlay as expenditures; howsver, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized. This is the amount of caplial assets
recorded. 1,114,845

Depreciaﬁbn expense on capital assets is reporied in the government-wide statement of
activities, buf it does not require the use of current financial rescurces; therefere,
depreciation expense is not reported as an expenditure in the govemmental funds. (386,788)

Loss on disposal of capital assets {17,266}

Compensated absences expsnse reported in the statement of activities does not require
the use of current financial resources; therefore, it is not reported as an expenditure in the
governmental funds. (773)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures; therefore,
they are deferred in the governmental funds. 959,998

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on long-term debt; whereas in
governmental funds, interest expenditure is reported when due. 6,714

Long-term debt transferred from the governmental activities to the successor agency trust
fund as a result of RDA dissolution. 12,908

The issuance of long-term debt (eg., bonds) provides current financial resources to the
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assefs. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued; whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statemnent of activities, This amount is the net effect of

these differences in the treatment of Jong-term debt and refated items. 1,219,170
Changes In net assets of governmental activities $ 997,710

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
11
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ASSETS

Current asseis:
Cash and invesiments
Account and interest receivable, net
Due from other funds

Total curreni assets

Nancurrent assets:
Properiy, plant and equipment,
net of allowance for depreciation

Tolal noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Deposits
Compensated absences
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current llabilities
Noncurrent liabilites:
Long-term debt

Advances from other funds
Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total nel assets {deficit)

CITY OF KINGSBURG
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

Nen-Major

Tolal

Building Proprieiary

Water Disposal Ambulance Fee Funds
§ 2102330 § (171,839 $ (1,805249) % (686.310) $  (660,868)
131,016 147 056 218,067 - 494,138
7,958 - - - 7,959
2,241,305 {24,583) (1,589,182) (686,310) (58,770)
4,544,212 6545 3,585,347 11,144 8,541,348
4,044,212 645 3,585,347 11,144 8,541,348
7,185,517 (23.938) 1,996,165 {675,166) 8,482,578
237 469 83,629 27,968 285 349,331
32,189 - - - 32,189
- - - 6,500 8,500
24,917 8,244 44 614 2,379 80,154
80,072 - - - 80,072
374,647 91,873 72,582 9,144 548,248
2,512,317 - - - 2,512,317
650,000 - 2,920,000 - 3,570,000
35,867 13,228 139,144 - 188,239
3,198,184 13,228 3,059,144 - 6,270,556
3,672,831 105,101 3,131,726 9,144 5,818,802
2,351,823 645 3,585,347 11,144 5,948,859
1,260,863 (129.684) (4,720,908} {695,454) {4,285,183)
5 3,612,886 § (129,039) § (1135561) §  (884,310) § 1,663,776

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS —~ PROPRIETARY FUNDS

CITY OF KINGSBURG
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Development fees

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Contractual services and utitities
Personnel services
Suppiies and materials
Depreciation and amortization
Capital outlay
Total operating expenses
Operating incoma {loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENLUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income
Interest and fiscal charges
Total non-operating revenues {expenses}
Net income (loss) before transfers
Other financing sources {uses}:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Changes in net assets

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year

Net assets (deficit), end of year

Business-Type Aclivilies - Enterprise Funds

__Non-major
Total
Building Proprietary
Watar Disposal Ambulance Fees funds

$ 1,637,584 & 1,583,915 $ 780,253 % - % 4011768
- - - 79,191 79,191
1,637,584 1,683,915 780,258 79,191 $ 4,080,958
811,075 1,450,561 248,848 17,152 2,527,638
441 508 153,150 585 584 31,157 1,621,400
42,748 40,718 84,501 266 168,231
269,741 2,715 99,278 2,106 373,838
65,956 - - - 65,056
1,631,027 1,647,144 1,428,209 50,681 4,757,061
6,567 (53,229) (647,950) 28,610 {666,102}
1,170 (382) - - 788
(117,084) - {(140,094) - {(257,178)
(115,814) (382) (140,094} - (256,390)
(109,347} (53,611) (788,044) 28,510 (922,492)

- - 976,138 - 976,138
(274,105) - - - {274,105}
{274,105) - 976,139 - 702,034
(383,452) (53,611) 188,095 28,510 (220,458)
3,986,138 (75,428) {1,323,656) (712,820} 1,884,234
% 3612,686 § {120,039) $ (1.135561) % (684,310} $ 1,863,776

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF KINGSBURG

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from custemers and users
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments to employses for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers (to)/from other funds
Interfund foan repayment

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets
Principat paid on long-term dabt
Interest and fiscal charges

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating aclivities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets and fiabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivables. net
increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabillites
{Increase) decrease in compensated absences

Net cash provided (used) by cperating activities

Non-Major Total
Building Proprietary
Water Disposal Ambulance Fees Funds

$ 1645771 $ 18275619 $ 715407 % 79,191 § 4,087,988
(706,802) (1,558,006} (305,475} {18,140) (2,589,423)
(477,344) (151,853) {987,789} {44,037} (1,660,823}
461,626 {83,041) (577,857) 17,013 (182,259)

(274,105} - 978,339 - 702,024
{40,000} - (75,000) - (115,000)

{314,105) - 901,139 - 587,034
(159,129) - {28,820) - (187,949)
(77,754 _ - - - {77,754)
(84,895) - (140,084) - {224,989}
(321,778} - {168,314) - (490,692)
1,170 (382) - - 788

1,170 (382) - - 788
(173,087) (83,423) 154,368 17,013 (85,129)
2,275,417 (88,217) (1,858,617} (703,323) (475,739)
$ 2402,330 $ (171,639) $(1,805249) $ (688,310) $ (560,868}
$ 6,567 $ (53,229) $ (647.850) % 28510 $ (666,102)
269,741 2,715 99,276 2,106 373,838
8,177 33,704 (64,852) - (22,971)
212,975 (67,727) 27,874 (722) 172,400
{35,835) 1,497 7,7_95 {12,880} (39,423)
$ 461626 §  (83,041) $ (577.857) § 17,013 § (182,259)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral pari of this statement,
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts and interest receivable

Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Liabiiities:
Accounts payable and accrued expense
Accrued inferest payable
Deposits

~ Loans payable

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust

17

Trust Funds

866,512
873
17,2686

884,451

82,387
11,663
11,750
838,513

544,313

(59,862)




CITY OF KINGSBURG
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Trust Funds

ADDITIONS
[nterest 3 1,27%
Net assets received upen dissolution of 004 518
Redevelopment Agency —_——
Tetal additions 5 225797
DEBUCTIONS:
Planning and community development $ 167,610
Capital outlay . 85,393
Interest and fiscal charges 18,748
Operating transfers out 13,908
Total deductions 285,659
Changes in net assets (59,862)
Net assets, beginning of year -
Net assets, ending of year $ (589,862)
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 — SUNIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Kingsburg {the City) have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as appiied to governmentai units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The most significant of the government's accounting principles are described below.

These financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in
substance, part of the government's operations and data from these units are combined with data of the
primary government. Each blended component unit has a June 30 fiscal year-end. There are no discretely
presented component units included in these financial statements. The following sections further describe the
significant poficies of the City.

Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated as a general law city in 1808. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of
government. The City's major operations include public safety, highways and streets, water and disposal,
parks and recreation, building inspection, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general
administrative services.

included in this report is the activity of the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Kingsburg (the Agency)
through January 31, 2012, The Agency was established May 3, 1982 to administer the City's redevelopment
activities and projects. As further described in Note 12, the Agency was dissolved effective February 1, 2012.

Also included in this report is the Kingsburg Public Financing Authority (KPFA). The KPFA was established
June 30, 1990 through a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City and the Agency. The
formation of the joint powers authority was approved by the City Council who is also designated as the Board
of Directors for the KPFA. The City Manager is appointed Secretary with the City staff providing all support
services. The purpose of the KPFA is solely to provide funds from the sale of revenue bonds to finance or
refinance the costs of various projects for the City and Agency. The City set up the KPFA to act as a
financing/lending type institution only. The KPFA/City jegislative meetings are held concurrently. No separate
annual financial statements are prepared for the KPFA.

Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements — The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
different identifiable activity of the City's business-type activifies and for each function of the City's
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function
and, therefore, are included in the program expense reported for individual functions. Certain indirect costs,
which cannot be identified and broken down, are included in the program expense reported for individual
functions and activities. Program revenues include, 1} fines, fees, and charges paid by the recipients of goods
and services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
" revenues, including all taxes, are presented instead as general revenues,
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012 :

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB No. 34 in regards to interfund activities,
payables and receivables. Al internal balances in the Statement of Net Assets have been eliminated except
those representing balances between the governmental activities and the husiness-type activities, which are
presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary govemment column. In the statemant of
activiies those transactions between governmentat and business-type activities have not been eliminated.
The following interfund activities have been eliminated: due to/due from other funds, interfund note
receivabiefinterfund long-term debt, and transfers inftransfers out.

Net assets are restricted when constraints pltaced on them are either externally imposed or are imposed by
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  Internally imposed designations of resources are not
presented as restricted net assets. When both restricted are unrestricted resources are available for use,
generally, it is the City's policy fo use resiricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are
needed.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about the
City's funds. Separate statements for each fund calegosy — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each
dispiayed in a separate column.  All remaining govemmental and enterprise funds are aggregated ang
reported as non-major funds. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconciie and explain the
differences in funds and changes in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net assets and
changes in net assets presented in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. Operating expenses are those
expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reporied as non-
operating expenses.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used for all financial
resources except those required legally, or by sound financial management o be accounted for in another
fund. Generally, the General Fund is used to account for those traditicnal governmental services of the City,
such as police and fire protection, planning and general administrative services.

Kingsburg Public Financing Authority — The Kingsburg Pubfic Financing Authority Fund is used to account
for revenues and expenditures of the KPFA Revenue Bonds. Bond proceeds are to be used to finance or
refinance the costs of various improvermnent projects for the City and other public agencies.

Assessment Districts — This Fund is used to accumulate assessments levied for payment of bonds issued
for the improvement Districts No. 1991-1 and No. 1992-1 Improvement Bonds.

Kingshurg Redevelopment Agency Debt Services Fund — This Fund is used to account for taxes collected
and the repayment of a loan from the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Rank to construct a
new City police building and other related activities of the Agency. As further described in Note 12, the
Agency was dissolved effective February 1, 2012,

Street Projects Fund — This Fund is used to account for related street construction and maintenance.
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Rasis of Presentation (Continued)

Enterprise fund financial statements include a statement of net assets, a statement of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net assets, and a statement of cash flows for each major enterprise fund and non-major fund.

The City has three major enterprise funds, the Water, Disposal, and Ambulance, which are used to account for
operations that are financed and operated in @ manner simiar to private business enterprises. In an enterprise
fiend, the intent of the Cily Council is that costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services to the
general public, on & continuing basis, be financed of recovered primarily through user charges.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

. The Water Fund accounts for financial activity of the water utility system.

+ The Disposal Fund is used to account for the financial activity of the solid waste coliection and
disposal utility system.

«  The Ambulance Fund is used to account for the financial activity of the ambulance activities.
The City's fiductary funds represent agency trust funds, which are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities)
and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The agency trust funds are accounted for on an
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting
The City reports the following fiduciary fund:
+ The Successor Agency of the Redevelopment Agency accounts for assets and liabilities of the
former redevelopment agency until they are distributed to other units of state and local government as

a resuit of the dissolution of the redevelopment agency.

WMeasurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — The government-wide, proprietary,
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic rescurces measurement focus. The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless
of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives)
value without directly receiving {(or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants,
entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year
for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from sales tax are recognized when the undetlying fransactions fake
place. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. :

Gaovernmental Fund Financial Stalements — Governmental funds are reported using current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable and avaflable. Property and sales taxes, interest,
certain state and federal grants, and charges for services are accrued when their-receipt occurs within sixty
days after the end of the accounting period so as to be both measurable and available. FExpenditures are
generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related fo claims and judgments and compensated absences, are
recorded only when payment is due. General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as other financing
SOUrCes,
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The City applies all applicable GASBE pronouncements (including all'NCGA Statements and Interpretations
currently in effect), as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Beard (APB) Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins {ARB) of the Committee on Accounting Procedure. In addition, the City applies all
applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements fo its business-type activities,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating
revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal
activity of each fund. Nonoperating revenues, such as interest income, state and faderal grants, and
subsidies, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. Operating expenses include costs for
providing services and delivering goods such as administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
All other expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating expenses.

Assets, Liabilities and Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents represent the City's cash bank accounts including,
but not limited to, certificates of deposit, money market funds and cash management poals for reporting
purposes in the Statement of Cash Flows. Additionzally, investments with maturities of three months or less
when purchased are included as cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows.

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Interest eamings as a
result of this pooling are distributed to the appropriate funds based on month end cash balances in each fund.

Investrments of the pool include only those investments authorized by the California Government Code such as
United Stated Treasury securities, agencies guaranteed by the United States Government, registered state
warrants, and other investments. Investments primarily consist of deposits in the State of California Local
Agency Investment Fund. Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost.

Accounts Receivable — Billed, but unpaid, services provided fo individuals or non-governmental entities are
recorded as accounts receivable. The proprietary funds include a year-end accrual for services through the
end of the fiscal year which have not yet been billed. Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for
uncollectible.

Property Tax Calendar — Fresno County is respensible for the assessment, collection and apportionment of
property taxes for all taxing jurisdictions. Property taxes are levied in equal installments on November 1 and
February 1. They become detinguent on December 10 and April 10, respectively, The lien date is January 1
of each year. Properly taxes are accounted for in the General Fund. Property tax revenues are recognized
when they become measurable and available to finance current liabilities. The City considers property taxes
as available if they are collested within 60 days after the year-end. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are
due on July 1 and become delinguent if unpaid on August 31, However, unsecured property taxes are not
susceptible to year-end accrual,

The City is permitted by Article XIlIA of the State of California Constitution (known as Proposition 13} to levy a
maximum tax of $1.00 per $100 of full cash value.

Inferfund Receivables/Payables — ltems classified as interfund receivable/payable represent short-term

lending/borrowing transactions between funds. This classification also includes the current portion of an
advance {o or from another fund.
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued}

Advances To/From Other Funds — This classification represents non-current portions of any long-term
lending/borrowing transactions between funds. This amount will be equally offset by a reserve of fund balance
which indicates that it does not represent available financial resources and therefore, is not available for
appropriation. The current portion of any interfund long-term’ loan (advance) is included as an interfund
receivable/payabie.

Capital Assets — Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the General, Special Revenue, and Capital
Projects Funds, and as assets in the Governmeni-Wide Financial Statements o the extent the City's
capitalization threshold is met.

Capital Assets, which inciude property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets {e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in
the Governmeni-Wide Financial Statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with and
nitial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historicat cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Betterments and major improvements which significantly increase values,
change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
included in the resuits of operations.

Major outiays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities are included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings and improvements ... 20-50 years
Plant system ... 20-50 years
Machinery and egquipment ... 5-1Q years
INFEASIIUCIUNE Loovre et 40 years

Compensated Absences — Accumulated unpaid vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are
earned. The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements as
long-term debt. For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is recognized
upon the occurrence of relevant events such as employee resignations and retirements that occur prior to year
end that have not yet been paid with expendable available financial resources. These amounts are reperted in
the fund from which the employees who have accumulated leave are paid.

Sick leave is accumulated at 15 days per year for full-time regular employees. Vacation is accumulated at 12
days per year for full-time regular employees with less than five years of service to a maximum of 25 days per
year for full-time regular employees with over 20 years of service with no limit on accrual of unused hours.
Upon employment termination, unused sick leave is paid out at 50% for less than 20 years of service and 75%
for more than 20 years of service. These amounts are included as liabilities in the government-wide and
enterprise fund financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Eguity {Continued)

Deposits — Deposits principally consist of amounts collected from developers for services to be rendered by
the City, including engineering, plan checks and inspections and planning review services. The City
recognizes such amounts deposited as reventie when the services are performed and the corresponding

expenditures are incurred.

Inferest Payable — In the government-wide financial statements, intersst payable of long-term debt is
recognized as the liability is incurred for governmentai fund-types and proprietary fund-types.

In the fund financial statements, proprietary fund-types recognize the interest payable when the liability is
incurred.

Deferred Revenue — Deferred revenue is that for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which
revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The City typically records deferred revenue related to
uncollected cutstanding, performing loans and intergovernmental revenues (primary granis and subventions)
received but not earned (qualifying expenditures not yet incurred).

Long-term Obligations — In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
sinancial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net assets. Debt
principal payments of both governmental and business-type activities are reported as decreases in the
balance of the liability on the statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as insurance
casts, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, however, debt principal payments of governmental funds are recognized as
expenditures when paid. Governmental fund-types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as weli as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are repoyted as other financing uses. lssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Encumbrances — The City does not use encumbrance accounting.

Budgetary and Budgelary Accounting — Budgets are adopted annually for the general funds, special revenue
funds, capital funds, debt service funds, and enterprise funds. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a
management control device during the year for these funds. The annual budgets are prepared on the basis of
accounting utilized by the fund.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. The City Manager is
authorized to make budget transfers between accounts within any fund. Al revisions must be reported to the
City Council.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL!ClES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Eguity (Continued)

Netf Assefs - In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified in the following categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, intc one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances
of debt that are attributable o the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce this
category.

Restricted net assets — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets — This category present the net assels that do not meet the definition of
“invested in capital assets, net of refated debt” or “restricted net assets”.

When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, restricted resources are depleted first before
the unrestricted resources are used.

Fund Balances - The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications
that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints
on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The
classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

. Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
(a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact,

« Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of
the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b} imposed by law through constifutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

« Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant
to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These amounts cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking tha same type
of action (ordinance or resolution} that was employed when the funds were initially committed. This
classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual reguirements.

= Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for
a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the City
Council or through the City Council delegating this responsibility to the Finance Director through the
budgetary process. This ciassification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all
governmental funds except for the General Fund.

« Unassigned: This classificaticn is the residual classification for the general fund and represents fund
balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or
assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. In other governmental funds it includes any
negative residual amounts that may exist as a result of expenditures incurred for specific purposes in
excess of amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes.

The City would typically use restricted fund batances first, followed by committed resources, and then

assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend
unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 — SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

New Pronouncements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 60

in Novemnber 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 850, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service
Concession Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing
issues related to service concession arrangements ("SCAs”), which are a type of public-private or public-public
partnership. This Statement requires disciosures about an SCA including a general description of the
arrangement and information about the associated assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows, the rights granted
and retained, and guarantees and commitments. Application of this Statement is effective for the City’s fiscal
year ending June 30, 2013.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 62

In Dacember 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporfing
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The objective of this
Statemnent is to incorporate into the GASB's authoritative literature certain accounting and financial repoerting
guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which
does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements:

1 Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘FASB"} Statements and Interpretations

2. Accounting Principies Board Opinions

3. Accounting Research Bulletins of the American [nstifute of Certified Public Accountants’ ("AICPA”)
Committee on Accounting Procedure

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 863, Financial Reporting of Deferred OQutflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This Staterment provides financial reporting guidance for
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. This Statemnent also amends the net asset
reporting requirements in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis—Tfor State and Local Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual
measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for the City's fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 64

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting
Termination Provisions. This Statement sets forth criteria to establish when the effective hedging relationship
continues and hedge accounting should continue to be applied. The requirements of this Statement enhance
comparability and improve financial reporting by clarifying the circumstances in which hedge accounting
should continue when a swap counterparty, or a swap counterparty’s credit support provider, is replaced. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for The City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. This Statement
did not have an impact on the City's financial statements.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65, ffems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This
Statement establishes accounting and financiat reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outfiows of
resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities
and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reporied
as assets and liabilities. The requirements of this Staternent are effective for the City's fiscal year ending June
30, 2014,
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 34, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Mew Pronouncements (Continued)

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 66

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012 — An Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 10 and No. 62. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial
reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by resclving conflicting guidance that resulted from the
issuance of fwo pronouncements, Statemenis No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmerital Fund Type
Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Confained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2014,

Hereinafter, these pronouncements collectively are referred to as the "FASB and AICPA proncuncements.”
This Statement will improve financial reporting by contributing to the GASB’s efforts to codify all sources of
generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments so that they derive from a single
source. Application of this Statement is effective for the City's fiscal year ending June 30, 2013,

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 67

In June 2012, GASB issued No, 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 25. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by state and local
governmental pension plans. This Statement resulfs from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of
existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful
information, supperting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional
transparency. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plars, and No. 50, Pension
Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements
(hereafter jointly referred o as trusts) that meet gertain criteria.  The requirements of Statements 25 and 50
remain applicable fo pension pians that are not administered through trusts covered by the scope of this
Statement and to defined contribution plans that provide postemployment benefits other than pensions, The
requirements of this Statement are effective for the City's fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68

In June 2012, GASB issued No. 88, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of
GASB Statement No, 27. ‘The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial
reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by state and
local governmental empioyers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This
Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and
financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-usefu] information, supperting assessments of
accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This Statement replaces the
requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as
well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are
provided through pension plans administered as frusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to
as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The requirements of Statements 27 and 50 remain applicable for pensions
that are not covered by the scope of this Statement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the
City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

California law authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United Stated Treasury, agencies and

instrumentalities, certificates of deposit or time deposits in banks and savings and loan associations which are
insured by the Federat Deposit Insurance Corporation.

28



CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TQ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In accordance with applicable sections of the California Government Code and the Kingsburg Municipal Code,
the City prepares and legally adopts an annual balanced budget on a basis consistent with accouniing
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 'Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for
the General Fund, specific Special Revenue Funds, and specific Capital Projects Funds. Budget plans are
adopted for Preprietary Funds. A proposed budget is presented to the City Council during May of each year
for review. The Ceuncil holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change appropriations within
the revenues and reserves estimated as available. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted
appropriations at the fund level. Supplementary appropriaticns which alter the total expenditures of any fund,
or expenditures in excess of total budgeted fund appropriations, must be approved by the City Councii.

All Annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end to the extent they have not been expended or encumbered.,

NOTE 3 -~ CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City pools all of its cash and Investments except those funds required to be held by bond trustee or
outside fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled cash is
allocated to the various funds on average cash balances. Interest income frem cash investments held by hond
trustee is credifed directly fo the related funds.

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2012 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Government-wide $ 3,658,862
Fiduciary funds 866,512
Total Deposits and Investments $ 4525374

Deposits and investments as of Juna 30, 2012, consist of the following:

Cash on hand and in banks $ 788,613
Investments 3,735,761
Total Cash and investments $ 4,525 374

The following is a summary of deficit cash bakances as of June 30, 2012:

Governmental Funds

Major Fund:
Street Project 5 (940,507}
Non-Major Funds:
Senior Center (19,633)
Special Assessment Projects (2,653)

Enterprise Funds
Major Funds;

Disposal (171,639
Ambulance (1,805,248)

Nen-Major Fund:
Bulilding Fees (686,310)
$  (3625991)

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {GAAR) require that any cash overdrafts in the funds be reporied as
interfund fiabilities rather than as a credit balance in an asset account (negative cash). Management decided
to report negative cash balances in the funds due to the fact that other funds did not have adequate cash
positions to make the interfund loans,
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City's Investments Policy

The table below identifies the invesiment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government
Code (or the City's investments pelicy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of
the California Government Code (or the City's investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest
rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. The City's investment policy does not contain any specific
provisions intended to limit the City's exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.
This table does not address investments of debts proceeds held by bond trustee that are govemed by the
provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government
Code or the City's investment policy.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage  Investmentin

Authorized Investment Type Maturity  of Porifolio One lssuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
1.8, Treasury Obligations 5years Nene None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year Nene None
Revarse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% None
Medium-Term Nofes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds NFA 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pocled investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency investment Fund {LAIF) N/A None None
JSA Paols (other investment pools) NIA None None

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market inferest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by investing funds in
fiquid, short-term investments which can be converted to cash when necessary to meet disbursement
requirements.

Segmented Time Distribution

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investrments to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the following schedule that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months 131024 2510 60 Mare than 60
Investment Type Total or Less Months Months Months
State Investment Pool $ 2,485,670 $ 2,485 670 $ - % - 5 -
Held by Bond Trustes:
Investment Agreement 600,000 600,000 - - -
1J.S. Treasury Obligations 650,091 650,081 - - -
Total $ 3,735,761 $ 3,735,761 $ - $ - 8 -
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS {Continued)

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obtigation to the helder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rafing by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented Delow is the minimum rating required (where applicable) by the California
Government Code, the City's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for
each investment type. The columnn marked “exempt from disclosure” identifies those invesiment fypes for
which GASB No. 40 does not require disclosure as to credit risk:

Rating as of Year-End

Exempt from
investment Type Total Disclosure A1+ AAAM Not Rated
State Investment Pool $ 2485670 % - % - % - $ 24858670
Held by Bond Trustee: .
Investment Agreement 500,000 - 600,000 - -
U.5. Treasury Obligations 650,091 - - 650,081 -
Total $3,735761 & . % 600000 $ 850081 & 2,485,670

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City centains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. The City does not have any investments in any
one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent
5% or mote of total City investments.

Reported

Issuer investment Type Amount
U.5. Bank nvestment Agreement $ 600,000
L.S. Bank U.S. Treasury Obligations 650,091
$ 1,250,091

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be abie fo recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collatera! securities that are in
possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposifs, other
than the following provisions for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by the state or local government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unitess so waived by the governmental unit). The market
vaiue of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by
“the public agencies. California law also aflows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first
trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. As of June 30, 2012, the
City's bank balance of $119,500 was exposed {0 custodial credit risk because it was urinsured and
collaterized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the

name of the City.
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk-Investments

The custodial risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction,
a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain
legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect
to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities.
Custodial credit risk dees not apply to a tocal government's indirect investment in securities through the use of
mutual funds or government investments pools (such as LAIF). The City’s investment of $2,485,670 in the
State [nvestment Pool has a custodial exposure of $2,485,670 because the related securities are uninsured,
unregistered and held by the brokerage firm which is also the counterparty for these securities.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the lLocal Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the
California Govermnment Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of
the City's investments in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based
upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the
amortized cost of that portfolic). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

NQTE 4 — PREPAID EXPENDITURES

Prepaid expenditures at June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:

Governmental
Activities

Unameortized deferred charges $ 193,733
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NOTE 5 — iNTERFUND ACTIVITY

Interfund Receivables/Payables {Due To/Due From)

Interfund receivable and payable balances arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by all funds
affected in the period in which transactions are executed and are expected to be repaid shortly after the end of
the fiscal year. Interfund receivable and payable balances have primarily been recorded when funds overdraw
their share of pooled cash. Activities within Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2012, are
as follows:

{nterfund interfund
Receivables Payabies
Governmenta! Funds
Major Funds:
Kingsburg Pubtic Finance Authority $ - % 40,038
Assessment District 27,199 105,120
Street Projects - 150,000
Non-Major Fund:
Sewer Connection 260,000 -
Total governmental funds 287,199 295,158
Enterprise Funds
Major Fund:
Water 7,959 -
Total enterprise fund 7,958 -
Total interfund recelvable/payable $ 285158 § 205158
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NOTE 5 — INTERFUND ACTIVITY (Continued)

Advances From/ To Other Funds

Advances receivable constitute long-term borrowing between funds. Advances typically carry a stated interest
rate and have scheduled debt service payments. At June 30, 2012, the funds below have made advances that
were not expected fo be repaid in one year or less.

Advances Advances
Receivable Payable
Kingsburg Public Finance Authority Debt Service Fund 3 4673000 $ -
Assessment Districts Debt Service Fund - 1,103,000
Ambulance Fund - 2,920,000
Water Fund - 650,000
Total $ 4673000 3$ 4,673,000

Operating Transfers
With the City Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to ancther. The purpose of

the majority of transfers is to reimburse a fund that has made expenditures on behalf of another fund.
Transfers within fund types have been eliminated with the government-wide financial statements.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:

The General Fund fransferred to the Ambulance Fund

to cover operating expenses $ 761,079
The General Fund transferred to the Senior Center Fund

to cover cperating expenses 21,000
The Capitaf Faciliies Fund transferred to the Ambulance Fund

for bond payments 215,059
The COPs Grant Fund iransferred to the General Fund

to cover operating expenses 100,000
The Abandoned Vehicle Fund transferred to the General Fund

to cover operating expenses 3,224
The Sucessor Agency RDA Fund transferred to the General Fund

to reimburse expenses incurred . 13,908
The Local Transportation Fund transferred to the Street Projects Fund

to cover capital projects expenses 552
The Measure T Fund transferred to the Street Projects Fund

to cover capital projects expenses 64,549
The Water Fund transfarred to the Street Projects Fund

to cover capital projects expenses 274105
The RDA Debt Service Fund transferred to the General Fund

to cover operating expenses 272,748
The Gas Tax Fund transferred to the Street Projects Fund

to cover operating expenses 432
The General Fund transferred to the COPs Grant Fund

to cover operating expenses 69

The Low-Moderate Housing Fund transferred the land held for low and
moderate housing projects to the Low and Moderate Income Housing
Asset Fund due to dissolution of the RDA 574,389

$ 2,301,214
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JUNE 30, 2012

Capital asset activity of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Censtruction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improverments

Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements

Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
$ 1,243632 . - % (574,388) 3 669,243
387,175 191,835 - 559,010
1,610,807 191,835 (574,389) 1,228,253
4.419,870 - - 4 419,870
9,095,619 923,010 (21,579) 9,987,050
2,775,457 - - 2,775,457
16,290,946 923,010 {21,579) 17,192,377
(1,978,794) (63,532) - (2,042,326)
{777,994) (244,528) 4313 (1,018,209)
(2,005,161} (78,728) - {2,083,889)
(4,761,849) (386,788) 4,313 (5,144,424)
11,528,997 536,222 (17 ,266) 12,047,953
$ 13,139,804 728,057 % (591,655) § 13,276,208

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government

Parks and community services
Public safety

Public works

Total

$ 32,197
4414
101,587
248,590

§ 386,788
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NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital asset activity of the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows!

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Delefions June 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, net being depreciaied:

Land $ 83,216 - 3% - % 83,216

Construction in progress 12,602 - - 12,602
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 95,818 ‘ - - 05,818
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and plants 10,282,582 155,059 - 10,441,641

Machinery and equipment 1,739,482 28,889 - 1,768,371
Total capital assets, being depreciated 12,022,064 187,948 - 12,210,012
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (1,896,363) (300,567) - (2,296,930)

Machinery and equipment (1,394,282) (73,270) - (1,467,552)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,380,645) (373,837) - (3,764,482)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 8,631,419 (185,889} - 8,445,530
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 8,727,237 § (185889 3 - % 8,541,348
Total capital assets $ 21,867,041 $ 542,168 § (591,655) 3§ 21,817,554

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type functions as follows:

Business-type activities;

Water 3 269,741
Disposal 2,715
Ambulance 99,276
Building Fee 2,106
Total $ 373.838
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NOTE 7 — OPERATING LEASE

The City has a non-cancelable lease for the City’s Council Chambers. The lease expires on August 31, 2017.
For the fiscal-year end June 30, 2012, rent expense was $25,200. The lease payments range from $2,1C0 to
$2,362 per month,

Future minimum lease payments for the leases are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal

2013 3 25,830
2014 25,656
2015 27,254
20186 27,513
2017 28,201
2018 4723

§_ 139477

MOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful lives
aqual to or greater than the related debt.

In government fund-types, debt discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period. Debt
discounts and issuance costs incurred in proprietary funds are deferred and amoriized over the term of the
debt using the bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the effective interest method. The City's debt
transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail thereafter:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 4, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2092 One Year
Goverpmental Activity Long-Termn Debt:
PFA revenue bond, Series 1891 $ 1,310,000 - $ (70,000) % 1,240,000 70,000
PFA revenue bond, Series 1992 2,035,000 - {475,000) 1,560,000 90,000
PFA fire department lease revenue bond 2,885,000 - (75,000) 2,820,000 75,000
CIEDB police building loan 613,785 - {613,785} - -
Unamortized bend discount (26,607) - 1,384 {25,223) -
Compensated absences 455,408 773 - 466,179 154,776
Total governmental activity debt § 7,392,584 773 ${1,232,401) $ 6160,956 389,776
Business-Type Activity Long-Term Debt:
CIEDB water ioan $ 2,570,144 - % {(77,754) $ 2,592,380 80,072
Compensated absencas 267,985 407 - 268,392 80,154
Total business-type activity debt $ 2,938,12% 407 § {77,754 $ 2,860,782 160,228
Total long-term debt $ 10,330,713 1,180 $(1,310,155) $ 9,021,738 550,002
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NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Long-term debt payable at June 30, 2012 was comprised of the following individual issues:

Governmental Activities

Kingsburg Public Financing Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 — On October 15, 1991, the City
issued $4.000,000 in revenue bonds with interest rates ranging from 7.60% to 8.00% payable semi-annualiy.
The proceeds were used to finance, refinance, or reimburse the cost of acquiring and construction/improving
and equipping, of capital improvements for the City or the Agency. These bonds are payable from
assessments on the property owners within the City and are payable from other funds of the City. The
principal payments range from $45,000 to $200,000 and are due annually through 2023. At June 30, 2012
bonds putstanding amounted to $1,24C,200.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Kingsburg Public Financing Authority Revenue Bonds, Series
1991 are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest ~ Total
2013 $ 70,000 § 95600 & 165,600
2014 $5,000 89,400 174,400
2015 50,600 82,400 172,400
2016 90,000 75,200 165,200
2017 85,000 57,800 162,800
2018-2022 610,000 203,600 813,600
2023 200,000 7,600 207,600

$ 1,240,000 5 21,600 § 1,861,600

Kingsburg Public Financing Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 — On July 30, 1992, the City issued
$6,000,000 in revenue bonds with interest rates ranging from 7.70% to 7.90% payable semi-annually. The

proceeds were used to finance, refinance, or reimburse the cost of acquiring and construction/improving and
equipping, of capital improvements for the City or the Agency. These bonds are payable from assessments cn
the property owners within the City and are payable from other funds of the City. The principal payments
range from $95,000 to $300,000 and are due annually through 2023. At June 30, 2012 bonds oufstanding
amounted to $1,560,000.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Kingsburg Public Financing Authority Revenue Bonds, Series
1992 are as follows:

: Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total

2013 % 90000 $ 119640 § 209,640
2014 105,000 111,983 216,983
2015 105,000 103,688 208,688
2016 110,000 95,195 205,195
2017 130,000 85,715 215,715
2018-2022 760,000 261,885 1,021,885
2023 260,000 10,270 270,270

3 1,560,000 3% 788,376 § 2,348,376
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NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continuzd)

Kingsburg Public Financing Authority 2004 Lease Revenue Bonds, Fire Department Facilities — On
August 1, 2004, the City issued $3,395,000 in revenue bonds fo consiruct a new satellite firefambulance
station and to remodel the current station. The interest rates range from 2.0% to 5.00% payable semi-
annually. These bonds are payable from fees for ambulance services. The principal payments in amounts
from $65,000 to $205,000 are due annually through 2035. At June 30, 2012 bonds outstanding amount to

$2,920,000. )

Annual deht service requirements to maturity for Kingsburg Public Financing Authority 2004 Lease Revenue
Bonds, Fire Department Facilities are as follows:

Gavernmental Activilies

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 75,000 % 138,905 § 213,905
2014 80,000 136,205 216,205
2015 80,000 133,205 213,206
2016 85,000 130,125 215,125
2017 85,000 126,725 211,725
2018-2022 500,000 575,300 1,075,300
2023-2027 630,000 443,750 1,073,750
2028-2032 800,000 270,250 1,070,250
2033-2035 585,000 59,500 644,500

§ 2020000 $ 2,013,965 § 4933965

CIEDB Police Building Loan — During the fiscai year 2001/02, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of
Kingsburg obtained a loan from the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (CIEDB) to
construct a new city police building that may not exceed $1,287,100. The terms of the note call for annual
interest payments at 2.58% through 2017. As a result of the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Kingsburg as of February 1, 2012, the CIEDB Police Building Loan of the former redevelopment agency
was transferred to the Successor Agency of the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Kingsburg. After the
date of dissolution, the loan and activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency are reported in a fiduciary
fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial staterments of the City.

Business-Type Activities

CIEDB Water Loan — On August 31, 2004, the City, as purchaser, entered into an instaliment sale agreement
with the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (CIEDB), as seller, of a water system
upgrade. As part of the agreement, CIEDB agreed to design, acquire and construct the project for, and sell
the project to, the purchaser. In order to implement these provisions, the CIEDB appointed the City as its
agent for the purpose of such design, acquisition and construction. The agresment after the 2011
amendment, in the amount not fo exceed $3.147,396, bears interest at 2.98% with semi-annual payments on
August 1 and February 1. Under the terms of the agreement, CIEDB issued tax exempt bonds to be used for
the funding of the project. At June 30, 2012 the loan outstanding amounts {o $2,592,390.
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NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for CIEDB Water l.oan are as follows:

: Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total

2013 5 80,073 % 76,080 & 156,133
2014 82,459 73,638 166,097
2015 84,916 71,145 166,061
2018 87,446 68,576 186,022
2017 90,052 65,932 165,884
2018-2022 492,150 287,145 779,295
2023-2027 569,983 208,152 778,135
2028-2032 660,126 116,667 776,793
2033-2035 445 185 20,158 465,344

$ 2592390 3 987474 § 3,579,864

NOTE 9 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

Fund Balance and Retained Farnings Deficits — The following is a summary of deficit fund balances and
retained earnings as of June 30, 2012:

Governmental Funds

Major Funds:
Assessment Disiricts 3 (B64,874)
Street Project {1,050,148)
Non-Major Funds:
Senior Center (19,887)
Special Assessment Projects {3.003)

Enterprise Funds

Major Funds:
Disposal (129,039)
Ambulance {1,135,561)
Non-Major Fund:
Building Fees (684,310)
Fiduciary Fund
Successor Agency of the RDA {69,862)
$ (3,946,684)

The deficit fund balance in the Assessment Districts Fund is due to reclassification of outstanding debt into the
fund as an advance.

The deficit fund balance in the Street Project Fund is due to capital expenditures.

The deficit fund balance in the Disposal Fund and Ambulance Fund is due to operating expenditures
exceeding cperating revenues.
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NOTE 9 — DEFICIT FUND BALANCES (Continued)

The deficit fund balance in the Building Fees Fund is a result of the City-wide growth moratorium that was in
effect for fiscal years 2003/04, 2004/05 and 2005/06, and the slowdown in growth due the great recession of
2008.

The deficit fund balance in the Successor Agency of the RDA Fund, Senior Center Fund and Special
Assessment Projects Fund is due to operating expenditures exceading cperating revenuss.

NOTE 10 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a jeint powers agreement which
establishes the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority {CSJVRMA). The relaticnship
between the City and CSJVRMA is such that CSJVRMA is not a component unit of the City for financial
reporting purposes.

The CSJVRMA is & consortium of 57 cities in San Joaquin Valley, California. 1t was established under the
provisions of California Government Code Section 8500, et. Seq. The CSJVRMA is governed by a Board of
Directors, which meets three to four times each year, consisting of one member appointed by each member
city. The day-to-day business is handled by a management group employed by the GSJVRMA. The financiai
statements of CSJVRMA can be obtained at 1831 K Street, Sacramento, CA 95814,

Each member government pays a primary deposit to cover estimated losses for a fiscal year (claims year).
Six months after the close of a fiscal year, outstanding claims are valued. A retrospective deposit computation
is then made for each open claims year. Costs are spread to members as follows: the first $25,000 of each
occurrence is charged directly to the member. Each member maintains a $1,000,000 self-insured retention
(SIR) amount covered by the Authorify-pocled investments. The Autherity purchases excess liability coverage
through the Cafifornia Affiliated Risk Management Authority for the amount in excess of $1,000,000.
Reinsurance coverage is purchased by the Authority through American Reinsurance for the amount in excess
of $1,000,000 up to $13,000,000 at 25% dquota share.

The City purchases Workers Compensation insurance through the Authority. The City maintains a $350,000
SIR with the Authority. Excess coverage is purchased by the Authoerity through Coniinental Casualty for up to
$5.000,000 per accident in excess of the SIR.

The City also purchases various property coverage programs. Deductibles and fimits per property type can be
obtained from the City Manager or directly from the Authority.

Contingent Liabilities

The City participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs in addition to the Claremont
Custody Center State contract program which are subject {o financial and compliance audits. Audits for these
programs and the respective findings are to be determined at a future date, and the City expects the ameunt, if
any, of the expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agency to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits and claims. The City attorney anticipates that actual or potential
claims against the City, not covered by insurance, would not materially affect the financial position of the City.
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NOTE 11 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - The City contributes to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), an
agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provide retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death bensfits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS acts
as a common investment and administrative agent for paricipating public entities within the State of California.
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute and City ordinance. Copies of
PERS' annual financial report may be obtained from their Exscutive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA
85814, :

All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the Plan. Part-time employees appointed to a term of cne
year or fonger and who work an average of 20 hours per week are also eligible to pariicipate. Other part-time
non-benefited hourly employees do not participate in the Plan. Related benefits vest after five years of
service. Upon five years of service, employees who retire at or after the after 50 are entitled o receive an
annual retirement benefit.

Funding Policy

Active plan members in the Pian are required to contribute 7% of their covered salary. The City makes the
employees’ contributions on their behalf. The City is required to contribute the actuarially determined
remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used are those adopted by the CaiPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was 11.990% for the miscellaneous plan and 17.088% for the safety plan.
The contribution requirements of plan members are established by State statute and the employer coniribution
is established and may be amenhded by PERS.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the City’s annual pension cost of $486,645 for PERS was equal to the
City’s required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30,
2010, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumplions
included: (a) 7.75 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected annual
salary increases that vary by duration of service and (c) 3.25 percent cost-of-living adjustments, Both (a) and
(b) included an inflation component of 3.25 percent. The actuarial value of PERS assets was determined
using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a three-
year period (smoothed market value). PERS unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or excess assets) is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at
June 30, 2012 was 17 years.

Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension

Fiscal Year Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation

June 30, 2010 $ 518,465 100% -
June 30, 2011 3 512,217 100% -
June 30, 2012 $ 496,645 100% -

The City participates in risk pooling. Risk pooling consists of combining assets and liabilities across employers
to produce large groups where the impact of a catastrophic demographic event is shared among the
employers of the same risk pool. Participation in the risk pool is mandatory for all rate plans with fess than 100
active members. Mandated participation in risk peols was initially based on the active membership of each
rate plan as of June 30, 2005. The implementation of risk pools was done in & way that minimizes the impact
on employer contribution rates. For the first year risk pools, the employer contribution rates are almost
identical to what the rates would have been outside the pocl. Future rates will be based on the experience of
each pool. Pooling will reduce the volatility of future employer rates.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 12 — SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Biil 1X28 (‘the Bill"} that dissolved ail
redevelopment agencies in the State of Catifornia. This action impacted the reporting entity aof the City of
Kingsburg that previously had reported a redevelopment agency within the reporting entity of the City as a
blended component unit.

The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of local
government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assels until they are distributed to other
Lnits of state and local government. On January 18, 2012, the City Council elected to become the Successor
Agency for the former redevelopment agency in accordance with the Bill as part of City Resolution Number
2010-11.

After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of
California cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject to the control of a newly
established cversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence at
the date of dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were subject o legally
enforceable contractual commitments.)

In future years, successor agencies will only be affocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay the
estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of the farmer redevelopment agency untii
all enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been
liquidated.

The Bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to renew the propriety of any transfers of assels
between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011, If the public
body that received such transfers is not contractually committed o a third party for the expenditure of
encumbrance of those assets, the State Controller is required to order the available assets to be transferred to
the public body designaied as the successor agency by the Bill.

Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations of the former redevelopment
agency due to the City are valid enforceable obligations payable by the successor agency trust under the
requirements of the Bill. The City's position on this issue is not a position of settled law and there is
considerable uncerainty regarding this issue. it is reasonably possible that a legal determination may be
made at a later date by an appropriate judicial authority that would resolve this issue favorably to the City.

In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (as madified by the California Supreme Court on December
29, 2011) all redevelopment agencies i the State of California were dissolved and ceased to operate as a
legal entity as of February 1, 2012.

Prior to that date, the final seven months of activity of the redeveiopment agency continued to be reported in
governmental funds of the City. After the date of dissolution, the assets and activities of the dissolved
redevelopment agency are reported in a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial staternents
of the City.
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JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 12 — SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(Continued)

The transfer of assets and liabilities of the former redevelopment agency as of February 1, 2012 {effectively
the same date as January 31, 2012) from governmental funds of the City to fiduciary funds was reported in the
governmental funds as an extraordinary loss {or gain) in the governmental fund financial statements. The
receipt of these assets and liabilities as of January 31, 2012 was reported in the private-purpose trust fund as
an extracrdinary gain (or loss).

Because of the different measurement focus of the governmental funds (current financial resources
measurement focus) and the measurement focus of the trust funds (economic resources measurement focus),
the extraordinary gain (loss) recognized in the governmental funds was not the same amount as the
extraordinary gain (loss) that was recognized in the fiduciary fund financial statements.

The difference between the extraordinary loss recognized in the fund financiat statements and the
extraordinary gain recognized in the fiduciary fund financial statements is reconciied as follows:

Total extracrdinary loss reported in governmental funds - increase
to net assets of the Successor Agency Trust Fund 3 738,672

Capita assets recorded in the government-wide financial statements -
increase fo net assets of the Successor Agency Trust Fund 17,266

Accrued bond interest reported in the government-wide financiat statements -
decrease to net asseis of the Successor Agency Trust Fund (12,207)

Long-term debt reparted in the government-wide financial statements -
decrease to net assets of the Successor Agency Trust Fund {618,513)

Net increase o net assets of the Successer Agency Trust Fund as a result
of initial transfers (equal to amount of extraordinary gain reported in the
government-wide financial statements of the ity $ 224518

Other Assets
The amount reported as "Other Assets” in the Successor Agancy Trust Fund consists of the following:
Downtown directional signs $ 17,266

S 17,266

Long-term Debt

Long-term debt reported in the Successor Agency Trust Fund at June 30, 2012 was comprised of the following
individual issues:

Balance Balance Due Within

July 1, 2011 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2012 One Year
CIEDB Polico Building 1.can $ - % 518513 3 - $ 518513 $ 97,977
Kingsburg RDA Tax Refunding Bonds - 320,000 - 320,000 20,000
% - $ 838,513 $ - 3 838,513 % 117,977
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JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 12 — SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
{Continued)

CIEDR Police Building Loan — During fiscal year 2001/02, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Kingsburg
obtained a loan from the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (CIEDB) fo construct a
new city police building that may not exceed $1,287,100. The terms of the note call for annual interest
payments at 2.85% through 2017. At .June 30, 2012 the loan outstanding amounts fo $518,513.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the CIEDB Police Building Loan are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 87,977 % 13,335 & 111,312
2014 100,760 10,612 111,272
2015 103,621 7,610 111,231
2016 106,564 4,626 111,190
2017 109,581 1,556 111,147

3 518,513 % 376239 % 556,152

Kingsburg RDA Tax Refunding Bonds — The former Kingsburg Redevelopment Agency issued a tax
allocation bond payable in annual installments ranging from $20,000 to $40,000 with interest payable semi-
annually at an average overall rate of 7.8% per annum. At June 30, 2012, the bond ouistanding amounts to
$320,000.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Kingsburg RDA Tax Refunding Bonds are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2013 3 20,000 % 24480 § 44,480
2014 20,000 22,910 42,910
2015 20,000 21,330 41,330
2016 25,000 18,553 44,553
2017 25,000 17,578 42,578
2018-2022 170,000 51,350 221,350
2023 40,000 1,580 41,580

$ 320,000 § 168,781 § 478,781

NOTE 13 — EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The excess of expendituses over appropriations are as follows:

General Fund

Park and community services 5 4,368
Planning and community development 29,007
Capital outlay 2,378

$ 35751
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JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 14 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Governmental Fund Financial Statermnent Maijor Non-Major
Low-
Senior Moderate
General Street Gas Tax Center Housing Total

Understatement of compensated absences $ 274562 % - % 9298 $ 7694 $ - $ 291,552
Qverstatemnent of revenues - {(385,886) - - - (385,896}
Understatement of land held for low and moderate -

housing projects - - - - 574,389 574,388
Total prior period adjustments $ 274562 $(385896) § 0296 § 7694 §574388 § 480,046

Government-Wide Financial Statement

Overstatement of land held for low and

moderate housing projects $ 574,389
Understatement of compensated absences (459,3889)
Understatement of deferred charges 233,572
Understatement of revenue (385,886)
Total pricr period adjusiments $ (47.824)
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2012

Varjance with

Budgeted Amount Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)

REVENUES:

Taxes $ 2,320,378 $ 2,320,378 % 2,139,738 % (180,640)

Licenses and permits 870,400 870,400 840,982 (29,418}

Intergovernmental - - 123,892 123,892

Charges for services 220,830 220,830 254,067 33,137

Fines and penalties 48,000 48 000 31,282 (16,738)

Interest 1,000 1,000 1,048 48

Other revenue 123,500 123,500 137,300 13,800
Total revenues 3,684,208 3,584,208 3,528,289 (55,919)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 827,246 833,571 545,139 288,432

Parks and community services 264,966 264,966 269,334 (4,368)

Public safety 2,126,918 2,126,918 1,531,296 595,622

Public works 473122 473,122 442 804 30,318

Planning and community development 137,619 137 619 166,626 {29,007)
Capital outlay - - 2,378 (2,376)
Total expenditures 3,828,871 3,836,196 2,957 575 878,621
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures (245,663) (251,988) 570,714 822,702
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in 1,137,800 1,137,800 389,880 (747,920)

Transfers out (857,680) (857 680) (782,148} 75,532
Total other financing sources (uses) 280,120 280,120 (392,268) (672,388)
Changes in fund balance 34 457 28,132 178,446 150,314
Fund balance, July 1, 2011 633,792 633,792 633,792 -
Prior period adjustments 274,562 274,562 274,582 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2012 $ 942811 $ 936486 $ 1,086800 3 150,314
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 — BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City follows the following procedures, annually, in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
budgetary comparison scheduies:

1. The City Manager submits to the Gity Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing
the following July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them.

2. The City Council reviews the proposed budget at specially scheduled sessions, which are open to
the public. The Council also conducts a public hearing on the proposed budget to obtain
cormments from interested persons.

3. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally adopted through passage of an ordinance. This budget is
reported as Original Budget in the budgetary comparison schedules.

4. During the fiscal year, changes to the adopted budget may be authorized as follows:

a. ltems requiring City Councii action — appropriation of fund balance reserves; transfers of
appropriations between funds; appropriation of any non-departmental revenue; new
interfund loans or advances; and creation of new capital projects or increases to existing
capital projects.

b. items delegaled to the City Manager — transfers between depariments within funds;
appropriation of unbudgeted departmental revenues; and approval of transfers which
increase salary and benefit appropriations.

c. items delegated to the depariment head — allocation of departmental appropriations to line
iterm level. .
5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management tool for all funds. Annual budgets are

legally -adopted and amended as required for the general, special revenue, and enterprise funds.
Projectlength budgetls are adopted for the capital projects funds. All budgets are prepared on a
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and budgetary
comparisons for the general and major special revenue funds are presented on that basis in the
required supptementary information. A debt service payment schedule for the debt service funds
is also approved as part of the budget process. :

8. Budget amounts are reflected after all authorized amendments and revisions. This budget is
reported as the Final Budget in the budgetary comparison schedules.

7. For each legally adopted operating budget, expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations
at the activity level. The legal appropriation basis is at the level called “department’. A
“department’ for legal appropriation purposes may be a single organization or an entire
department having multiple organizations within the same fund, or an entire fund.
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 38, 2012

Special Capital
Revenue Fund  Projects Fund Total
ASSETS

Cash and investments $ 1,431,165 $ 1,572,087 % 3,003,252

Accounts and intarest receivable 161,385 471 161,856

i and held for low and moderate housing projects 574,389 - 574,389

Due from other funds - 260,000 260,000
Total assets . $ 2,166,939 % 1,832,558 $ 3,999,497
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expense $ 11,407 $ 350 11,757
Total liabilities , 11,407 350 11,757
Fund balances:

Restricted: )

Capital improvements projects ‘ - 1,835,211 1,835,211
Circulation improvements 1,590,099 - 1,590,088
Public safety programs 10,931 - 10,931
Low-income housing activities 574,388 - 574,389

Unassigned (19,887) (3,003) (22,850)
Total fund balance 2,185,632 1,832,208 3,987,740
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 2,166,939 § 1832558 $ 3,899,497
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Special Capital
Revenue Fund  Projects Fund Total

REVENUES:

Taxes o $ 69,959 % - 5 69,959

Intergovernmental 1,033,802 - 1,033,802

Development fees - 134,788 134,788

interest 3,684 1,536 5,220

Other : 7,919 - 7,919
Total revenues 1,115,364 136,324 1,251,688
EXPENDITURES:

General government - 1,903 1,903

Parks and community services 70,256 - 70,256

Public work 461,668 - 461,668

Planning and community development 1,473 22,938 24 411

Capital outiay 428,810 13,353 441 963
Total expenditures 962,007 38,194 1,000,201
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

{under) expenditures 153,357 88,130 251,487
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in 595,458 - 595,458

Transfers cut (743,246) (215,059) (958,305)
Total other financing sources (uses) {147,788) {215,059) (362,847)
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

RDA dissolution (852,646) (205,792} (1,058,438)
Total extraordinary item (862,646) (205,792) (1,058,438)
Net changes in fund balances (847.077) (322,721) {1,169,798)
Fund balances, July 1, 2011 2,411,230 2,154,929 4,565,169
Prior period adjustrments 591,379 - 591,379

$ 3,887,740

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 $ 2155532 § 1,832,208
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Local i
Gax Tax Transportation Measure C Senior Center '
ASSETS
Cash and investments % 100,329 3 746,705  § 593,824 % (18,6833}
Accounts and inferest receivable 33,788 102,623 23,604 381
tand held for low and moderate housing projects - - - -
Tolal assets ‘ & 134,115 % 849,328 % 617,428 & (19,252}
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payabie and accrued expense 3 1415 % 371§ 8,886 3§ 535
Total iiabllities 1,415 371 8,886 635
Fund balances:
Restricied:
Circulation improvements 132,700 B48,957 608,442 -
Fublic safety programs - - - -
Low-income housing activities - - - -
Unassigned - - - (19,887}
Total fund balance 132,700 848,857 608,442 {19,887)
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1341156 § 849,328 § 517428 § (18,252)
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
CONBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONNMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Lew and
Moderate
Vehicle Low-Maderate  Income Housing
COPS Grant Abandonment Housing Asset Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ -3 940 $ -3 - § 1431165
Accounts ang interest receivable - 991 - - 161,385
. Land held for low and moderate housing projects - - - 574,389 574,389
Total assets 5 - % 10,931 & - % 574,386 3 2,166,939
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expense 3 - 3 -3 - 0§ - % 11,407
Total liabilities - - - - 11,407
Fund balances:
Restricted:
Circulation improvemenis - - - - 1,590,099
Public safety programs - 19,931 - - 10,931
Low-income housing activities - - - - 574,389 574,389
Linassigned ' - - - - (19,887
Total fund balance - 10,831 - 574,389 2,155,532
Total iiabilities and fund balance 3 - 3 10,931 % - % 574,380 §_ 2,166,939
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergavernmental
Interest
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Parks and community services
Public work
Ptanning and community development
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues cver
{under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers cut

Total other financing sources (uses)

EXTRACRDINARY ITEM
RDA dissolution

Total extraordinary item
Net changes in fund balance

Fund balances, July 1, 2011
Prior period adjustments

Fund balances, June 30, 2012

CITY OF KINGSBURG
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Locat

Gax Tax Transportation Measure C Senior Center

5 - % - § - % -
320,374 305,311 301,437 4,572

- 906 1,397 -

- - - 7,919

320,374 306,217 302,834 12,481

- : - - 70,256

245,330 30,662 179,255 -

- 190,797 - -

248,330 221,459 179,255 70,256
74,044 84,758 123,579 (57,765)

- - - 21,000

(432) (552) (64,649) -

(432) (552) {64,649) 21,000
73,612 84,206 58,930 (36,765)

49,792 764,751 549,512 9,184

9,296 - - 7,694
§ 132,700 % 848,857 % 508,442 $ (19,887)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergovernmentail
Interest
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Parks and community services
Public work
Planning and community davelopment
Capital cutlay

TJotal expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

EXTRAORDINARY {TEM
RDA dissotuticn

Total extraordinary item
Net changes in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1, 2011
Prior period adjustments

Fund balances, June 30, 2012

CITY OF KINGSBURG

Low and
Vehicle Low-Moderate Moderate Income
COPS Grant Abandonment Housing Housing Asset Total

- % - 5 89,959 - 69,959

100,000 2,108 - - 1,033,802

(59) - 1,450 - 3,684

- - - - 7,519

99,531 2,108 71,409 - 1,115,364

- - - - 70,256

- 5,421 - - 461,668

. . 1,473 - 1,473

- - 237,813 - 428,640

- 5,421 239,286 - 962,007

99,931 (3,313} (167,877) - 153,357

69 - - 574,389 585,458
{100,000) (3,224) {574,389) - (743,246)
{99,931) (3,224) (574,368) 574,389 {147,788)
- - {852,646) - (852,646)
- - (852,646) - (852,646}
- (8,537) (1,594,912} 574,389 (847,077)

- 17,468 1,020,523 - 2,411,230

- - 574,388 - 591,378

- $ 10,931 % - 574,389 2,165,532
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Capital Sewer Parks and
Facilities Connection Storm Drain Recreation
ASSETS
Cash and investments % 786,014 % 47,943 % 31,021 % 84,589
Accounts and interest receivable 222 217 2 -
Due from other funds - 260,000 - _
Total assets $ 786236 $ 908160 $ 31023 % 54,599
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expanse $ - % - 8 - § -
Tolal liabilities - - - -
Fund balances:
Restricted:
Capital improvements 786,236 808,180 31,023 84,599
Unassigned - - - -
Totaf fund balance 786,236 208,160 31,023 84,589
Total fabilities and fund balance 3 786,236 & 908,160 % 31,023 % 84,599
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ASSETS

Cash and investments -
Accounts and interest receivable

Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expense

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted:
Capital improvements
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

CITY OF KINGSBURG
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

Redevelopment
Replacement

Total

§

1,572,087
471
260,000

1,832,558

350

350

1,835,211
(3,003)

1,832,208

Special
Assessment
Projects
3 (2,653) &
5 (2,653) %
$ 350 %
350
(3,003}
(3,003)
3 (2,653) §

$

1,832,558
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Capital Sewer Parks and
Facilities Connecticn Storm Drain Recreation
REVENUES:

Development fees 3 95,730 % 165,974 % - 3 23,084

Interest 770 612 - 27
Total revenues 96,500 16,586 - 23,111
EXPENDITURES:

General Government - - - -

Planning and community development - - 22,938 -

Capital outlay 2,800 - - -
Total expenditures 2,800 - 22,938 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures 83,700 16,588 (22,838) 23,111
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):

Transfers out {215,058) - - -
Total other financing sources (Uuses) (215,059) - - -
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

RDA dissolution - - - -
Total extracrdinary item - - - -
Net changes in fund balances {121,359) 16,586 (22,938) 23,111
Fund balances, July 1, 2011 907,595 891,574 53,861 51,488
Fund bafances, June 30, 2012 $ 786,236 $ 908,160 § 31,023 § 84,599

60



CITY OF KINGSBURG
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Special
Assessment Equipment Redevelopment
Projects Replacement Agency Total
REVENUES:

Develcpment fees 3 - 3 - 3 - 3% 134,788

Interest - 127 - 1,536
Total revenues - 127 - 138,324
EXPENDITURES:

General Government 1,803 - - 1,803

Planning and community development - - - 22,938

Capital outlay 1,100 - 9,453 13,353
Total expenditures 3,003 - 9,453 38,184
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures (3,003} 127 (9,453) 48,130
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):

Transfers out - - - (215,058)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - (215,059)
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

RDA dissolution - - {205,792) (205,792)
Total extraordinary item - - (205,792) (205,792)
Net changes in fund balances (3,003) 127 {215,245) (322,721
Fund halances, July 1, 2011 - 25,086 215,245 2,154,829
IFund balances, June 30, 2012 $ {3,003) % 25193 3 - $ 1,832,208
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CITY OF KINGSBURG
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Centract/
Federal Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/Pass Through CFDA Entity Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-through Fresno-Madera Area Agency on Aging:
Special Program for the Aging_Titte lll, Part B_Grants 93.044 12-0131 4,572
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 4572
U.3. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass-through County of Fresno;
Community Development Block Grants 14.218 CDBG # 11391 13,821
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 13,821
LS. Department of Transportation
Pass-through California Department of Transpertation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 RPSTPLE-5170{033) 6,039
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 CML-5176(041) 960
Highway Planning and Construction 20208 STPL-5170(049) 320
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPL-5170(034) 228,173
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPL-5170(042} 3,232
Highway Planning and Construciion 20205 CML-5170(044) 320
Highway Planning and Construction 20,205 CML-5170(029) 248,567
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 CML-5170(048) 320
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 CML-5170(038) 9,155
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 CML-5170(031) - 354
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPL-5170(043) 12,671
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 CML-5170(045) 320
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 CML-5170(039) 3,118
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 CML-5170(040) 4,515
ARRA - Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 ESPLCML-5170{036) 227,986
Total U.S. Department of Transpertation 746,050
L.S. Department of Homeland Security
Pass-through County of Fresno
Emergency Operations Center Grant 97.052 09-005 28,820
Total U.5. Depariment of Homeland Security 28,820
U.5. Department of Justice
Direct Programs:
Gang Resistance Education and Training 16.737 2010JVFKO008 26,275
Total U.S. Department of Justice 26,275
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 819,538
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CIY OF KINGSBURG
NOTE TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City of
Kingsburg and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of (CMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financiai siatements.
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OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIY OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Councill
City of Kingsburg, California

We have audited the financial statements of the govarnmental activities, the business-type activities, the,
sach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Kingsburg, California (the City),
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2012, We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal confrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, o preveni, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely hasis.

Our consideration of intarnal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control cver
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statsmant amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with

677 Scott Avenue, Clovis, California 93612
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those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Gity in a separate letter dated
December 5, 2012.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the

entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Prace. Puge. ¥ Loy

Clovis, California
December 5, 2012
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PRICE

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

City Council
City of Kingsburg, Caiifornia

Compliance

We have audited City of Kingsburg, California’s (the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012, The City's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of audifor's resulis section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with
those requirements and parforming such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Cur audit does not provide a legal
determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2012,

Internal Control Qver Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing ouy opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circutar A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opiniort on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compiiance.

677 Scolt Avenue, Clovis, California 93612
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a conirol over
compliance does not allow managerent or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal controf over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a fype of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal controi over compliance
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or matzarial weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above,

This report is intended solely' for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the
entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Pruce. Puge. f Compiny

Clovis, California
December 5, 2012
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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CITY OF KINGSBURG

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SEGTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor's report issued:

internat control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified”?
Significant deficiencias identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FEDERAL AWARDS
[nternal control over major programs:
Materiat weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considerad to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
{o be reported in accordance with
Section .510(a) cf Circular A-1337

[dentification of major programs:

CFDA Number
20.205

Dollar threshold used to disti'nguish betwsen Type A
and Type B pregrams:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

72

Unqualified

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Ungualified

Yes

No
Nene reported

No

No

None reported

No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Highway Planning and Construction

$300,000

Yes

No



CITY OF KINGSBURG
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No items are reportable.

SECTION {li - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS

No items are reportable,

73




CITY OF KINGSBURG
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINRINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No items are reportable.

SECTION ill — FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS

No items are reportable,
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